
CITY OF PITTSBURGH/ALLEGHENY COUNTY 

TASK FORCE ON DISABILITIES 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2010 

MINUTES 

 

 

Location:  First Floor Conference Room 

   Civic Building, 200 Ross Street 

   Pittsburgh, PA 

 

 

Members Present: Paul O’Hanlon, Chairperson, Aurelia Carter, Janet Evans, Sarah 

Goldstein, Rich McGann, James C. Noschese, Katherine D. Seelman, 

John Tague 

  
Members Absent: Linda Dickerson, Liz Healey, Milton Henderson, Jeff Parker 

  

Others Present: Judy Baricella, Adolphine Birescik, Stephanie Boczar, Ed Buran, 

Beverly Darwin, Dianne Gallagher, Megan Hammend, Max Heckman, 

Chuck Keenan, Danielle Lengle, Richard Meritzer, Asia Pruden, Tamara 

Siegert, Victoria Suvillaga, Joseph Wassermann, Emily Wilcox 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Noschese at 1:00 PM.        

 

INTRODUCTIONS: 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

Review and Approval of June’s Minutes 

Richard McGann asked that he be sent another copy of the minutes.  Ms. Evans moved to accept 

the minutes.  The minutes were approved unanimously.  

 

Review and approval of financial report  

Paul O’Hanlon reported that the Executive Committee had met to discuss the budget funding 

cuts.  They had a meeting with Reggie Young, Judy Barricella and others from the County.  

Currently the Task Force is funded to $8,500 with the possibility of another $3,000.  We need to 

budget for 10 monthly meetings and a retreat.  A retreat is higher priority than an annual meeting.  

This is still in negotiation.  We will plan to skip the August meeting and budget for meetings 

every month but one. 

 

Ms. Evans asked is this if for 2010 or 2011?  Paul responded that is was for July 2010 until June 

2011.  Ms. Evans moved and Dr. Seelman seconded to accept the report.  The motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

PRESENTATION – Active Allegheny by Max Heckmann 

Mr. Heckmann of Michael Baker Jr. Company explained that the project was funded by 

PennDOT and the County Department of Economic Development.  This is a follow-up for the 

County Comprehensive Plan, Allegheny Places.  That plan recommended development of non-

motorized travel (biking, walking, kayaking, rollerblading, etc).  The goal is to integrate non-

vehicular transportation into the transportation system. There are four themes:  Connectivity, 

Access, Mobility and Health. The plan contains a commuter bicycle plan, walk and roll plan, a 

complete street plan, and an action plan they generate with maps for these plans.  

 

 



                                                                                                                            September 20, 2010 Page  

 

2 

 

We want to achieve Smart Transportation.  To do that Sustainability is a key part of the plan. All 

of the project should be cost effective, contests, sensitive.  The plan should enhance, not destroy 

communities. Safety is a very important principle.  It must also be multimodal.  It should leverage 

existing centers of population.  It should create partnerships. And finally it should link 

transportation and land use.  It is about sustainability and place making.  He then went over the 

scope of work and the schedule.  The plan identifies specific areas of improvement through data 

collection, analysis and stakeholder connections. The draft plan had already been completed at 

September 7
th
. The final plan will be completed on December. The identified bike commuter bike 

routes as well as a circular bike route connecting the County Parks (roughly following the Orange 

Belt).  This circular route is about 100 miles.  Some of the roads on the route are not yet suitable 

for bicycles. 

 

Mr. McGann asked will it become more technical.  Will the maps be in Braille?  Dr. Seelman 

asked about signage.  Mr. McGann responded that GPS was important.  He suggested we contact 

Joe Coffey, mobility instructor.  Mr. Meritzer added that Joe Coffey is coming in to work with the 

Pittsburgh Downtown Partnership regarding Market Square. 

 

Mr. Heckmann continued that they identified key pedestrian locations, 25 intersections and 25 

corridors that could be improved and serve as examples for other cities to follow.  He then talked 

about the toolbox.  They identified three complete street pilot projects.  They started with 25 

candidates and boiled it down to three.   

 

Joseph Wassermann said this is a wonderful program but there is not one word about bicyclists 

obeying the traffic laws.  Mr. Heckmann said the plan talks about education and law enforcement.  

Beverly Darwin asked if there were provisions for people who want to go for a hike who use their 

wheelchairs. Mr. Heckmann answered the study was geared more to consumers.   

 

Mr. O’Hanlon asked if they were recommending curb cuts that were perpendicular or parallel.  In 

Pittsburgh often the whole intersection is ramped.  Did you survey people on what they prefer?  

Mr. Heckmann admitted they had not and he said he would look into that.  Mr. O’Hanlon 

continued this includes people with other disabilities.  Narrow diagonal curb cuts are not the way 

to go.  More study should be done before making a recommendation. 

 

Mr. McGann suggested they focus on bad sidewalks.  It is important to identify drivers that don’t 

know about white canes and guide dogs.  Nothing identifies people with hearing loss.  PennDOT 

should work with OVR and Vision Services to meet the needs.  Dr. Seelman suggested they close 

the loop on the dissemination and outreach program that is going on.  Mr. Heckmann responded 

the plan will be completed in December and then the County will roll it out.  The next phase will 

be to look for funding for the plan.  Mr. Noschese asked if there were plans to improve bicycle 

parking.  Mr. Heckmann said this was included in the plan; it is a critical deficiency.  Ms. 

Goldstein asked if bicyclists need to pay for metered parking.  Mr. Heckmann said not if they are 

parked on the sidewalk; you can still parka car there.   

 

Ms. Carter asked if public comment was going to be via the web.  Some communities do not have 

access to the web.  Mr. Meritzer added that we recently were involved with a survey that was not 

accessible and we have to make accommodations for that.  Dr. Seelman pointed out the City and 

the County has both moved to accessible web sites.  They need to be sensitive to screen readers.  

They should check with the County.  Mr. Noschese added that if they plan to use audible tapes 

they should be captioned.  Dr. Seelman said often they are in duel format.  Mr. Heckmann 

answered they will be just Text.  Mr. O’Hanlon cautioned him against PDF format.   

 

 



                                                                                                                            September 20, 2010 Page  

 

3 

UPDATE – Dis+abilities 

Noreen Price thanked the Task force for all their help.  The event will be October 8
th
 through 

October 10
th
 in the Monroeville convention Center.  They have a bill board on 5

th
 Avenue and 

Sunday there was a commercial on WTAE T. V.  She is working with the Task Force, GRIP, 

Chesapeake Rehabilitation, the Pennsylvania Rehabilitation Council, Miss Wheel Chair of 

Pennsylvania and Social Security to get out the word about this event.  There is going to be a 

fashion show, talent shows and senior idol.  Also there will be karaoke every day. 

 

Mr. Noschese asked if there was going to be a booth or a table for job search.  Ms. Price said 

Bender Consultants would be there.  They are currently looking for interpreters.  Steel City 

interpreters have volunteered to help.  The Blind Association and Deaf Services may be there.  

Ms. Cater pointed out this event is new.  How is it funded?  How about the talent show?  Ms. 

Price responded people can sign up on Saturday.  Dr. Darwin asked if she was working with 

Three Rivers Center for Independent Living.  Ms. Price responded yes.    

 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

Mr. Meritzer said that “Accessible PGH” is finally coming to fruition many years after it was first 

proposed.  He and Dr. Seelman are its co-hosts and have already filmed a spot and had it edited.  

They just need to wait for contract proposals for video captioning and video interpretation now.  

Once the captioning and interpretation will take place, the spot will be ready to air and Mr. 

Meritzer will let everyone know when it is.    

 

“Accessible PGH” discusses hospital compliance guidelines relating to the deaf, deaf/blind, and 

hard-of-hearing.  It also mentions why this is important and how it came to be, and includes 

references to the appropriate Web site.  Mr. Meritzer said that he had fun working on “Accessible 

PGH,” which he described as a five-minute TV spot when asked whether it was a TV show.  The 

spot is slated to appear on Pittsburgh cable, and in the future it may go to even more venues and 

to the City’s Web page.  Mr. Meritzer hopes that it will first air this November and that people 

will have multiple chances to see it.  A script has already been prepared for a second show and 

there are negotiations to get it filmed soon, though this won’t air until people see the first spot.  

The spots may eventually turn into a monthly event, but this is still a long way off. 

 

Mr. Meritzer then brought up the accessibility issues in Market Square.  He continues to attend 

development meetings on these issues and adds that the requests in Mr. McGann’s review of the 

square have been taken into account.  The Pittsburgh Downtown Partnership is now working with 

a new grants intern at City Planning to find funding for some of the changes suggested.  In 

addition, Mr. Coffey will probably spend one-and-a-half days in Pittsburgh to look at Market 

Square and find out what he can do.  Mr. Meritzer will inform the Task Force members at that 

time to determine the best use of Mr. Coffey’s time.   

 

Meetings Scheduled 

Mr. Meritzer plans to participate in Disability Mentoring Day and the 2011 Veterans’ Wheelchair 

Games.  On September 28, there will be a discussion of the games at a Special Events Committee 

meeting and all the committee chairs will tell the City what accommodations they need.  Mr. 

Meritzer thinks the meeting is sure to get the City very much involved in the Games.  Also on his 

plate are other SEC meetings; Market Square and Active Allegheny meetings; the dis+Abilities 

expo; and a lecture at Duquesne’s nursing school.  The October lecture is his third and is designed 

to sensitize nursing students to disability-related issues they may face in hospitals and at home.   



                                                                                                                            September 20, 2010 Page  

 

4 

 

There was a question about “Power of 32,” and Mr. Meritzer replied that a meeting would occur 

on September 22 at UCP.  He was not sure he could make it but said he would try.  Mr. McGann 

then protested against the automatic voice taping that medical facilities and businesses often use 

in place of personal phone calls.  The deaf cannot hear the tapings and may end up missing 

appointments as a result.  Mr. McGann feels that the general public must be reminded not to 

assume everyone can hear automatic messages.  Dr.  Seelman called this an interesting issue for a 

hospital compliance update.  It won’t be easy to deal with, but she agreed that there must be an 

alternative in place of the messages for the deaf and deaf/blind.  In fact, there will probably be a 

whole pile of issues about information access to confront.   

 

Vox Pop 

Dr. Seelman announced that on November 4
th
 will be the date of the Thornburg Lecture. Andy 

Emproda will be the speaker.  The event will begin at 1:00 p.m. and there will be a question and 

answer period afterwards.   

 

Ms. Carter reported the there is a problem with the three pedestrian traffic signals at East Side 

Village on Penn Avenue.  Cars are not honoring the pedestrians when they are making a left turn.  

She wants either a pedestrian only phase or the pedestrian light to change first.  In addition at the 

new Target site they replaced a traffic signal with a stop sign. 

 

Ms. Goldstein reminded us of the Lives They Left Behind and the Willard Suitcase Exhibit.  

These were items retrieved when the Willard State Hospital was closed.  The Exhibit is at the 

Frick Fine Arts building this week from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday.  This 

is the last week. 

 

A representative of Allegheny Health Services reported that East Liberty, a low income 

neighborhood, does not have internet access.  The street lights are not working and the ramps are 

in disrepair.  Mr. Meritzer suggested they contact the Mayor’s 311 request line and have the 

request forwarded to him.  Mr. O’Hanlon added the 311 system is the City’s tickler system.  It 

allows the City to track complaints.   

 

Dr. Darwin expressed her concern regarding Squirrel Hill.  Steps are blocking access to the 

stores.  There are cracks and potholes in the sidewalks.  Her building does not have crosswalks. 

And there are few bus shelters. 

 

Ms. Price suggested that local athletes involved in the 2011 Veterans Wheelchair Games might 

have a preliminary competition at dis+Abilities.  She added that the event will try and create 

public awareness. 

 

Ms. Carter thanked Mr. Meritzer for his help in getting paving done in her neighborhood. 

 

A motion to adjourn was made by Sarah Goldstein.  It was seconded by Ms. Carter.  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 PM. 
 

THE NEXT TASK FORCE MEETING:   

DATE:  October 18, 2010 

TIME:  1:00 P.M. 

LOCATION: Large Conference Room 

  200 Ross Street 

Pittsburgh, PA  15219 

 


